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1: 1 . , 1"0 

(3) Bank statements for Saving account bearing number 193851199 in the;hame of Bibi 

Raicha Rujballee for the perib~~;.16/10/10 to 29/12/10 collectively mark~~'~bs AC; . 
. ' ,,I.,. 

. ( 4) D~pq~Jt_ envelopes an_tj'. qqc;;1!:~"'~!1J ~.o.~-~~.i_nir:,g the table sh9w_ing AJ"M D.~P.~P~_it for cash 

deposited on MCB Accourit;itj1b~·r'ing number 192597256 jointly held i~!:lthe name of 

~i.~i s·~10a:h.· E~kbarall/ an:d,1(~11
1 

1
iij~h~n. R'u1bb1IJ~: collectively marked ~~!pod'AD; i : : . 

; ,. I" . . ,·, .,, . . . . -·'1:·•'1 · 1··11 I ' . ' . , . I , ... ·l'fiir, i· . . ... 
(5) Seven,'· ob_ .. posif: e~velbpe~,-~:lt 

1

?.~h 'depdsit1ed 
1
6n MCB Account, b~

1

!3!)~g nuryih'~r 
I ',, '" • ',. • • I ' li I ··r- ... 

11~38~~f99:held in th~ na1:i::ii :~~esha R_~j~al,lee collecti~el~ marke~lt; ~::~9c:A:~r· 
(6) A·cert'if1ea 'copy bf 'a· cheqJ~ . ,.: ·H in the .-n~Me' of BAl"Co 'i.'.fo 1shciWingl!J~:~- ~rt1dJtlf.df 

R. si2 '10·0· 31'0'·0 ' k. d1 ·a1 s ·D· )' f,!,;; · ' · ' · 1 • i : ' · · r , • '·I ,-.1~1i!11f'lj ' ·: 1 : · 
. , , , mar e : , }· ;f·',:.- i i i ·. ·. ':.

1
1 r,i:, ;·, ·. ; ,. · 

(7) Three huhdred and ~o cli'~I~:! , is;,:~heque whi~h have been deposited'[ 1\!ft1CB :saving 
' L ii', \~ I l I I I I I • t1,1~, ,. , · I'·! '1 , l,i'• 

. account bearing number 1e;2:~~,JC2'5'markea 'as Doc AJ-Doc AJ1-Doc ~pr.02 . 
. l:!:ll! '"<r'i 
I I J· ',· ,I, d . ,, ·' I 'ii I ~.1,jl 

' !' (' . . 11 ·;: 
Under cross-examination witness·;i:J:o.4 stated that the Table (Doc AD Ref~fS) which 

' '•! ·' . Jt•J, .. 
. •,, !'. •1 ••·• 

has been produced related to th¢:AT¥ envelope whichhave been produced. He stated 
! :11:i'l" I ' ' ::fi, 

that the: 302 cheques (Doc AJ-Opc· A~J302 Refer) are the documents.which have been 
. :- '':.,t;:; ' . ~: 

requested by ICAC .for investigatjpf1S.,: : 1:, 
' ' ' ~ •j !1i (• . : . ; t . 

. ' ; : 'i . . . ' :.1::1::i; :. ; . : ' ,.· . : l i _i: 

Under re-examination witness :1i°!jf: co~firmed th~t c3fter. consulting the d~8wnents from 

the b~nk r~ put the said Table (°i?~ AD Refers). ·:·ij;. . 

. . ;•,: ' ·1. ,,,· )i;, :·: ... : . . ; : :t, :-· 
4. Witness no.5, Mr Charoux; t~st.ifieg to the fact that in 2011 he was AMU[C.ompliance 

O~icer at ~BM Limited, .. He st~ti~l/~a,i 1611owing a Judge's Order he has b;f, delegated 
by. th~ bank to _identify and pr<?d~~T· the following doc~ments: . . J!: ;- · 
(1) St~tement of .Account bearrr,,;g a¢count numper 036101001144.82 f pr the period 

. ,}',f . ' .·l '! . 

10/01/11 to 10/01/11 marked as Doc AH; .. :: 
·.:: _;H .. · 

(4) Gertif,ied copy of four Cheque~'.drawn in the name of the accused mark~~. as Doc AG- 
.: '. .. . 'i i ji' 

DocAG1-DocAG2-DocA93:(i·' · : i ·. ;Ii'.;, . 
After refre~hing.the-memory of w,itness' no.5 he confir.med that accused has 'declared his 

: . ·~ •. ·. .; I;. . ' . '· •. ; : I .~. 
occ,upation as a police officer,.··he- w~.$ posted at Poudre D'or police staticm ·and he was 

• ·1 J~./-; . !·: r' . 
earning a monthly salary of Rs70qo. ;:i / 

'.;:\ 

> 

e 

I ), '' 
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5. Witness no.1, Investigator Daibee, read and produced the following documents: 
. i ~ 

( 1) Statement of the accused dated 05/03/13 which was marked as Doc AK;'. 
•I' ' • ' :, ~ 

- . (2).Affidavit sworn.by.the.Accused and. the Annexures rnarked as Doc .A.~.; . .:. .. i , . 
(3) Letter dated 28/01 /13 sho~ihg)h,e post occupied by the accused and. :/~:articulars of 

hi~ sa1Jry i'ri'1rlied ~s DOt A~i'liH i! , .• ' , ' ,: . . 1 
' i !!;i't · : ; ,' 

He st~ted, 
0

fh~t h·e /l~~estig~ted:}~);,//~bney l~uhd~ring off~nce in relatidn t6!~h~·iass·ets;.bf 
'. ,, / !' /L ;/. ,I 1' :··jt' . :,1 ,r,:' ,l 1!f,IJ)i;)/lif,· , .! l ·:·,· ·: I I, . .' l ,:I• : ·,;! ! ··,jJ. . :, :·.. . 
the accused :which he ~asj~:pq,u .f~~ by illegal means. He1 stated ~n~f'd'uri'~g his 

irivesiig ai;Jh i ~ni~i~' ~nkl~Sis \,~Mt :~~h~; nd d ocu;.,e ~;; 'h~ nbiihed ih~! th~(ii:c~s~d ti1iad 
used'his c;edilc~rd t~ pa{to Jf~~j~ploads and Tectonics. He confir~ed}tii~<ise !v/O 
websites are mainly used for 1d

1

!Jvn·1'o~ding movies at cheaper rates. He Jiiated' that the 
. :· . ' '!:•II' , .. 

analysis of the bank documerits' ·~e'vealed' that cheques were being crle'dited to the 
... ! ;, ! . ,. :, 

accused bank account and in Jime 2010 the account was s~owing a total amount of 
' .. : . ' . i' . 

Rs2, 130,000. On 21st June 2010 th7 accused applied for an o~ice chequewith the MCB 

in favour of the BAI Co Mauritia.s µt~Hn relation of an insurance\policy .. He stated that 218 
. ,, ' l, ' 

Cheques amounting to some R$6;30,000 were received but the amount ofmoney which 

was credited. to the account was i3.1pp,rqximately Rs 1,0.30,000. He stated that 
1
according to 

•. ·: . • I • C • . . ;' 'I . ' I ' •• ~ 

his observation nearly all the chEr
1
~u~s; have been made by th~ owners of th;e. video club 
1·, . ' ~ . 

operating in the northern reqionj.He ·stated that he recorded statement frdhi the video 
,. : l 

club owners .and all of.them :coDfiqned having. issu~d those ~heques in ·f~vour of the 
: ! ' • I • ;: ' If,'. • 

accused. 1 ., 1 • < · 
, ' 'j ; j • • •: 1·· , ' ' I ·.1: ~ 

.. , , . ; 'I. . i+ ,'., 
In crpss-examination witness no.1,. te~fified. to.the fact th~t Mr C~llych~~un Mf:itn~ss no.2) 
made .a complaint tp ICAC for \rifringement of copyrights. He stat~d that Ji(hess no.2 is 

. I I ) ,! , : ' 
1 I,! ' 

not th,e copyright1 holder of all the: films distributed in Maµritius and he did rio.t specify:for 
' . . I ' ; . 

which. filn:,s he was the copyright hdlder. He stated that he, did not enqµire into the 
inf~ingement of the video. He stat~d that h.is enquiry .revealed that the mon~.Y credited to 

th~ account. of the accused was q~rived from a source other than his :sala)y1 as a polic~ 

officer ... He stated that the viqeo: .0wners told· him that they have paid ch~ques to the 

accused but they di.d .not spe9ify fo( ,which particular film the payn:i.erit, wa{~ffected, He 
, .·· ··t' .! ! :I , 

confirmed that witnes.s r;io:2 wa.s: hotthe copyright owner of the films ~hict\Were sold by 
1·' ' 

the accused to .th.e iVideo"owners, He'.':turth~r explained that his enquiry ~~s not bc3sed 
' I , ,•, ! 

.! . 1. 
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-, 

solely on the films of which witness no.2 was the copyright miner but he also enquired 
, , ' I 

about DVDs, VCDs and movies which have been infringed. H~ could not specify which 
' . fi. ':· . 

. . films.thatwer:ecornmerciatii.ed.b.yJheaccu.sed were.infringing cbpies and_hitd.td not know 

whether the films· which: witnei1si no!.2 had copyright was sold by the i~·ccused. He 

corifirhibd that the ~roceeds w~~~ t~6rA an! ill'eg11 acfi,vity ~ihd hk tul· to u,~' a6lbse~ : ;'ICAC ' 
.. I .. ' I '. M ;, ' : '' r ; f:ijl ·[ :l·i I' Jj,1 ' i : i . 'I: ' f I I' t ~, j, . :1r !i I ' I : I 

pe suspecter <:'e~t b~'rine; l'ar~~~H8~ ibanrie vco. 0VD'1 films 'i3n cop,r .· s~Jqu\, mo' fine 

cap~Je idiJm~,e~if +' 6~~~*~,~~~!i\•acte FIAMLA . ,{ He Jo~fi'rmtd: !~,!. tflf ;ill<1g~i 
adi~ity I~ :~bo' 'LI. t"'.the,·~s~:11iri~: an~ tjls,1'.~i(b'3,tion of i'ntri'ng'e~. DVDs ·a~b not' aboGt!~'.~~ br~ac~tof 

I ' I 'I ' ' I, ',, i!• ' • 1.1 i' !1 "''i'' I ' ' ' ' I . ' ' ' I•: 11., :, I ' ·, 

copY,rig~\ He; ca~~ot 'ans~e~ :!r~1';Rni :~i_.l;m~ ~er~ i.~trirg~d but h.~ .~ain~ain~9:)hat' all the 
films which were sold were copiJ~'.:+11elrstated that no'identificatibn parade w~.s·carried10ut 

, J,11, . , I ' ' . ' , ' ' !:j , I . . ,1 

in the present matter beca·use·1tW~1'Vi·de'o shop owners stated that they knew\the accused 
I 'i•i1' ' I :; !, • ' 

well as he was a police officer w~rk'ing at Good lands police station. He' explained that ·he 
.,,11; ' . i 

put it to the accused whilst r.ed&.rding the latter's statement whether 'he ~bs willing to 
; ~! • ! 

participate.in an identification pa~~de. He admitted that there was no needto.put it to the 
, ·1 . . 

accused, He maintained thatthere .was no need to carry out: an identification .Parad~ 

despite the tact that ac.cused.agr;~eo to carry out.an ide~tification parade. He co~li~m.ed 
'~·:r ' 

th.at he did not inform the acc~sed thl?t he would not carry out an Jdentification parade. 

He also cqnfirmed that de$pitt;:i.: t~r. vid.eo sh,op o.wners asked to .iqe~tify thr ~ccused he 

did not carry out the identificatio'.~i;P~r~de. · 1 

' ,:i:! ' 
,;l; .. ' 

I!' ·1 • 1 

In re-examination he stated that;/~ccused was not a.uthoriz;ed t9 sell D\/Ds arid VCDs in 
• 1 ii ' I '· ,: 

the predicate crime. · 1 
::· • t.. ' 

• • 1 ' l :1· 

,! . 

~ !i ' · ' : . • r 
I 1 !'• 

6. Witness no.5,, Mr Clement, w~s reGalled and he e,xplained that the Qheque [ Doc AJ3 
• , I .• ; !' 1< 

Refe,rs ] was, drawn: on 7 /12/1 O ;~.nd t~e date 24l12/1 O is when .. the person fece.iving the 
: •• , I , 

cheque, would ca.11-~t t.he 'bank :t,o. prc;icess the cheque th~t is .either to creqit the bank .. :, . 

account or to cash i~: ! I; I 
! ' 

•,, . : . ,I 

Under cross-examination witness .no.'5 stated th~t 24th 1December 20:10 is the date on 
I ! '. ' • ' ' ' ;'· : ' j '. ' • 

which the cheque is being processed.·:He stated it is also correct to say that it. may be or 
;• lt . 

it may not be the date on which t~·e accused's ba~k .accqunt was be\ng1 cr~dit~d. 
'.;_ . ; ; ,. , ' 
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; . .. 

7. Witness no.22, Mr Joomuck, testified to the fact that in 2008 he was the;~irector of 

Perfect Deal Co Ltd and on 181h 'February 2018 he sold a Honda Civic f6r the sum of 

Rs300,000; He stated that th~e,,_pi.ice: . .included' the .. showroom. price andthe VAT but 
•:.. ' ,, 

excluded the reqistration, the rd~;d tax and miscellaneous expenses. He stated that the 
t I . ; • _, • i . - i :; r t ; - , , , : : . l . , . . - I .• I . ·_ ; '. . : ~ . . . . . 

accused had paid for the 'car in ·ca,;s~. He produced the document in respectof the sale of 
. i • I' I · Ji:.! I J., I . ' 

the car ~hich w~s marked as 000 AP: !'(1. 

. .. . . ... ,. , . ir JI?.· .. . . . . . . .. .. .. . l;c:' 0e , 
In cross-examination witness '.r.i~f;e:~ explained that the price of the car was Rs300·,000 . 

. i • : . • . ;_ !'lii!Pi•'' I'. : : . '' ~ : . : 
and when addi'rig registration ·; ;~:~~rr,p:d~ty and other expenses the total amount paid.fqr 

the ~ar i~[Rs42b,oob. He· stated ,f~afl'~e ~ycept!c/the payment1as he di~ nJt~ii~dariythi~g 
suspicious . ' ' :1 idiij!i r11J1·r ' : 

,,, ';. 
' 1:-:· ·.; 

' 

·II ' ; ·~ r 

8. Witness no.20,Mr Dabeesing, .testified to the fact that Rapidshare Techtronics and' 
! • :; t 

Mega upload have shut down the:ir services a long time ago . He stated that)v1egaupload 
I 

had shut down mainly because of oopyriqht issues and IP breaches. He stated that ICTA 
;;! 

' ,,l 
t ·:. > does not regulate these issues I ' : 

I' . . r , 

In cross-examination witness nol2J stated that he learnt that ~egauploai had ceased 

activities. maintained that ICTA h,~$ nothing to do with the closing of M~~aupload and 
'j • ;: . 

ICTA did not receive any complaints from any quarters. . i 

I·· 

In re-examination witness no.~.O:st~tecHhat he learnt that Megaupload was closed via the 
tj ,'I ' • ~- ' • 

internet. i .,' : . ,,. 
,:1 

9. Mr Neeranjan, witness no.23, testified to the fact he was the director of Right Image 
'< I• 

Film Ltd and he was importinq-oriqinal films; He stated that thesalesman were collecting 
' :, 

the original films and distributing ::to about 400 to. 500 video clubs thereafter they would 

remit to him the receipts and the money collected by them, 
,. ,, 

In cross-examination witness noi23 stated that he imported Indian films from India and 

Malaysia. He confirmed there wer.e four salesmen who were distributing the films to 400 
. ! i ~ 

SI Page :'! 



to 500 video clubs around the island. He was receiving the receipts and the money but 

he was not aware how these salesmen were distributing the films . 

• -"'·· -~ ~ ··.··-~ • ··-:·-- ' •• •h - • ~---- ,....... • _, .. _, •• - --- - • 

10. Witness no.2, Mr Callicharan,:t~st:ified to the fact thathe is the director ~f Mont Ida 
! " i ; : • ., J ' ; i ! I~~ ''. j 1 , ; ' ' • '. : , • : '. '. I , '• •.' , 

Entertamrnent Ltd which is inv;olv~9 in the importing and distributing of movies with riqhts . 
' ' : ', ! ;,: , 'I 1';,1 1\;I! I ! J) J , j; I ! i .• I j ,'.; !' \, I '• ,, 

ih the movie theatres ofMauriti;u~; :l~e, stated that hei has the right to distribute European . 

and India~· md~ies. He: stated\h~i lhe paid for a Roy~lty;ior the movies the·~ he obtained ' 

a Power of Att~r
1
ney to prate~ iHf'hht~ in Mauritius. He p'.oduced t~e Powir ff A~bme\' 

which was marked as Doc AQ and he confirmed that the Power of Attorney was, notarized. · 
' I . j I ! ,, ;i. .~ . .l} i i I : • ' ; ; t! [ ' i ', . I ; : • ii .·: ·.i; ' . . 

He explained that he bought: '.th'.~ coP,yrigh,ts: from. Shernaroo companyt'and fie has 

exclusive rights' over these fihns. He stated that he imported the original films': He stated 
·, :- ' . 

that he had received complaint that one Feroz was distributing copies of the films which 

he was the copyright owner in the north. He stated that one, Mr Khan, the owner of the 

video club who was purchasing original films from him informed him that the sale' for his 

films have decreased as another '(idea club was selling copies of these films. He stated 
I•; 

I • 

that he enquired from other video clubs in the north and he found out that qne Feroze 
I 

who is a police officer was sellinq' copies of his original films. 

·'1 

,: . 
In cross-examination witness rio.2 stated that his power of attorney does not cover for 

European films ,. He stated that; he did not see anyone selling copies of the films. He said 
• • I ! 

that he did not carry out the.enquiry andhe has never seen Mr Feroze .He confirmed that 
' . 

in. 2012 he went to give.a declarattcn at·ICAC. 

! ! 

11. Witness no.3 deposed to the fact that in 2003 he. was running a video club called 

Bollywood Star and when Mr Naguib was not able to· deliver the orjginal he would sent 

his brother in ·law Mr Feroze Rujballee, He stated that Mr Rujballee was .a police officer 

and he was delivering copies of European and Indian film. He asked him:topurchase the 

copies of the films from him ·but he declined to purchase those films '. ~e ir1f9rmed ,Mr 

Callicharan about the fact that Mr Feroze Rujballee was selling copies of the films which 

he was the copyright owner. He stated that he was watching Mr Feroz· and he noticed 
' •' '! ' • • 'I ' ' 

GI Page 
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.. 

that he was delivering copies of films to the 0th.er video clubs . He was driving a car make 

Honda bearing number 746ZT02 to deliver the films . 

. · . ' I . 
Under cross-examination witness _ho:3 stated that he; had bought original Indian films from 

: ·I· _1, !.1], ' , ,; ';:: \ '.i : i • , ._; ' I ' ; ; j ' : :, ' .• 

Mr Feroze and he' did not buy copies, from him. He explained that he sent a person to 
<1· :·ii•' iJt' ' : .t 0l••f

0

j ',: I • ,: i' • ! : ! ... ' 'j ', • I,. > ... · 
follow Mr Ferdze in 'the video clubs and to record the doings of Mr Feroze. :He stated: that 

following
1

in
1

tcir~atib~ h~ had re~ei~~d he knew ;Fer6~e wa~ sei°ling ~dpies bf th·e ,filhls .. ~ : 
. . ; ! ' . . ; . . i • : ., • l I 1·11. I : ; ' : I I • i i ti: ~ l I ' • I i • l : I I ·1· ; . J : : 

I
' I: I : ' " ' ' : I : ' ' 

' . I • ! ' I I I l • 

12. Witness nc/to, Mrs Dulthu'1i1
1

u~ iftestified to the f~ct that in 2003 h·er husband wasthe 
! . \: [. : ' . . ' 

owner of a video club at Good lands· and she was working together with her husband. .She 
• t ! , : I •r ' ' I I, . 1 , 

stated that' her husband was l:>tlyih'g1,the films: She'was shown :;58 cheques· [(Doc AG3 to 
I '' 

AG 139 Refers] and she explained that she had a joint account with her husband. She 

stated that she did not know to whom payment was effected and she did not know Mr 

Rujuballee. She confirmed that she was buying copies of Indian films, European Films 

a_nd cartoons from one Mr Feroze Khan. She said that she knows Mr Feroze and she 

described him as " Ii ti longue, .maigre" "ni brun ni clair". She said that Mr Feroze was .a 

police officer and he was living in the north. She said that she could not differentiate 
I . . 

·I 

between copies and original however in her statement to the police she gave a full 

description between original and · copies, She further. explained that she asked her . ' ) . 

husband before going to. the ICAC and her husband explained to her the difference 

between an original and a copy. Following an argument on the issue of identification the 

Court ruled that dock identification was allowed however witness no.1 o. did not identify 
' ' ' 

accused as Mr, Feroze in Court, . . . . 

1 ~~ Witness no.12 , Mr Lutchmun,. testified to the fact that between 1990 and 2003 he was 
. . , . ,: . I . . . . 

rY.~.r;,.ing a video club and he Was selling CDs and DVDs and .the films were originals. He 

also stated that he was selling copies and several distributors were selling those copies 

to him. He stated that during the period 1995 to 2005 he bought original films and ordered 

copies from Mr Feroz. He statedthat he did not meet Mr, Feroz and .his workers were 

dealing with him. Heconfirmed that·he was buying copies of films from Mr Feroz and he 

71Page 



was paying him in cheque. He maintained that he has never met Mr Feroz and he was 

leavinq.the.cheque with.nis.worker'tc give.it'.to Mr Feroz.----- 
. ' . ·i'"! . 

\ :; 

: ;;· :1:. ' . . : 
. ' 'i•t . ' . .. . ' ' 

14. Witness no.13, Mrs Bernadette.testified to the fact that in 20Q9 she was workinq on a· 
i : ' • • ·l . , i •· 1·~ . . . i' ),:).:· : ! . :1 ' . I ; 1. . ' , . ' . r : : , . : 

premises ,of a factojy. She .st,a,ted tn~t she was runninq a shop on one side .. 'and .9Il the 
, '; ; 1··; ·, ; !1 -. ' .. ·,:-:;i ·.i ! ,',',1,' : I· .!· , i :,· ;, .' . " ,!' -',, J! ,: ,· '1 ·,:.: '·' :• .. 

other ~ide her: husband was ruhn'fng'_the video club. She said that she was' not 'aware 'ot 
;• ' I .. I .· ,:, . f i I·' ' "I'· '1 1 ··i'I ' I . I . 1·- '., " ' . ·' 

' :l 1 ; l 'i ' 1 ,, , I I~ \!,' (, ,t ; , ,, , ' ' ' • , ; ; ' : '1 i ! :•,. i !. ' . 

th~ typ,e~ :9f "" ~nic~,:~s ~r- :~~!;~:1a~ her ~.u.sba~d.:~as purchasinq ~ho~'.: fii~-~- f ~~ ' 
said that she only s1gned:the c~.e~?~~j:but she ~1d not insert the name on the cheques. , 

:i ;! ;!, l t 

. ;[. :f [.; i' ' : 'l J ' : ' 
In cross:-examination witness no.13 'maintained that her husband ran the video club and 

t , I j!: j ' ' 1 I ' 

she was running the shop: Sfie'··alsb 'maintained that there was only one current account 

in her name and she was the only one who signed the cheques. 

. ' . 
15. Witness no.11, Mr Moorghen, testified to the fact that between 2006 to 2008 he was 

running .a video club and he was ·rE?r,~ing video. He stated that he was buying the video 
' I 

from one Naguib and two other salesmen but he did not remember their hames as he 
! ·; . 

was not dealing with·them on a regular basis. He stated that he was buying original video 
. ! I . I 

from the salespersons at Rs 17~. each. He was shown 12 cheques (Doc AG64 -Doc AG82 

Refer) and he explained that he inserted the figure and he signed the cheques however 

he never inserted the name of the person on the cheque. He said that ~e can't remember 

Mr Feroz Khan Rujballlee and h~ alsosaid " possib possib. .. " he remembers him .He said 
that he did not pay all these cheques to Mr Feroz Khan Rujballee and it is possible that 

he paid some of the cheques to him . He did not identify Mr Feroze [n _Court and he denied 
having bought copies. He maintained that he bought originals from the salesman and he 

bought the copies from a shop inPort-Louis, 

Under cross-examination witness ncp'.11 maintained that he bought the originals from the 
salesman and he bought copies from a shop in Port-Louis . 

. ' ,., ' ' 
, ., I -i ' 

16. Witness,no.14, tylr Ramjutton, in 2002 he was running a video club arid he was selling 

I 
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' 

original VCD and DVD. He stated that the price of the VCD and DVD was not fixed and 

the price was fixed according to the type of film which was sold. He said that he cannot 

· diffe:re·ntiate betw~~rFcofii~s.atitht5t'i~1ii'al ·fi1msr¥fe"Wa's-shown·Nva··chequesl('D0G AG300- 
. ' ·" •n: !it::1}1 , • : I 

AG301) and he: stated that he h:~d{~ffected payment to Mr Naquib who came to deliver 
I Ii: "rt1'i . I .. 

the original fil~s. Hestated tha~:t~:1~id:,:~ot !~rit~ " the cheques and he "" .not: kno~ 

Mr. Fer~ze Rujuballee. Th<; pro~~PijJf~ .put mcons,~ten! statement to the witness and he · 

maintained he never. mentioned !th:~::!name of Mr Feroze .Rujuballee in his statement. He 
! ; • '1 I :"i'~ I I:: . ' : ! I • ' • . 'I ,,,l,,~1.,,, . 

said. that he can't see.Mr Feroze-'.inlffi
1
·6uh. 

' I t!,'71 ' I ' 

. :1·;.:!U·: ·. , ,I , 1-··1 . . 

17.Witness no.15, Mr Jakhun, t,eMiti~ci,to the fact th~t ,in 2003 he was running, a video- 

club which was selling original rilhi'~:!1 He said that he was selling French films in copies 

and originals for Indian films .He was shown one cheque (Doc AG276 Refers) and he 

said that he paid the cheque to ~r ~aguib and he does not know Mr Feroze Rujuballee. 

He maintained that he did not pay t'~~ cheques to Mr Rujuballee but to Mr Naguib. 
'. I 

18: Witness no.16, Mr Busgeeth, ie~tjfied to the fact that he was selling original films and 

he was not aware how to·differe'f,bal~· copies .and originai . He. said that the ICAC officer 

put pressure ,to give a certain ve'r-s1t:r\ i~ his statement. He was shown .14 cheques arid 
I! l ·d1 ,· 

he said he paid· those cheques tc t~e representative of Right Image company who was 
'· .,1 .. 

delivering original films to him . frlei1said he does not know Mr Feroze Khan Rujuballee, 
. 1: ,,;! '. . 

He said that the ICAC- Officer in'sist~d with him to give the version that this person was 
, ' I 'I'' 

coming to his video club in uniform." 

: . j-: 

1 ~- Witness no. 17, Mr Jootun, deposed to the fact that he had to _close the video 

club as he wa_s selling copies. He was shown one cheque (Doc AG277_ Refers) and he 

stated he does not know Feroz Kha,n R~juballee. He maintained that he does not know 

Mr Feroze Khan Rujuballee and ·the ICAC Officer· has put pressure on him to give his 
I• ·, 

statement. 

, I :.;,,\ 

20. Witness no.t, Mr Dabee, 'produced the statement of witness no. 7 dated 27 /0~/17 
. i ir . 

which was marked as Doc AR. ·: ·: 11: 
i 

I 'i 
1 • ! :•,, . 
. 'ii 
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. r•' i 



Under cross-examination witness no.1 confirmed that in his statement witness no. 7 stated 

" Si mo trouve Ii mo capave identifier Ii" and he also confirmed that no identification parade 
was carried out. 

: ' I. ,I' ,·1·11>: 
' I i P ' : ' •:· I j • 

Case Closed For, Prosecution · ; ·
1

.:

1 

.. , · 
I I 1 ' . t i;1, P· 

' ' ,tt,., 
; ' ':11\ 

' ' I ; I •:,ill I 

Accused did not adduce any evidenee 
' "·ii . ; ' !'1t~111 '. I . ,.;•1,1,, 

: . Ji[', I I 1 ,1,I·. ·,. !f, ,1 
.'~ :}ti!'. 
'("II 1, , . .'';· ·)Ji; 
I.,''• 

I • , • 1, 

,l 

Case Closed for De'fence 

DETERMINATION . \·IHil,, Ii 

21. The Court has analysed all the evidence on record ,assessed the demeanour of the . :,; 

witnesses, and duly considered the' submissions of counsel for the prosecution and the 

defence. 'I ., 
'',. 

COUNT 1, COUNT 3-COUNT 23 , 

Money Laundering in breach of sections 3(1)(b), 6 and 8 of the Financial Intelligence 

and Anti Money Laundering Act 2bo2. 
11: ,_r· 

~ LAW, 

22. The relevant statutory provisions'under which the accused stands charged are 
provided in section 3(1 )(b) , section 6 and section 8 of the FIAMLA which are reproduced 

I ~ 

below: 11 · i•: 

S~c~ion3(~)(b) 
"Any person who - 

(b) receives, is in possession of, conceals, disguises, transfers, converts, disposes of, 
• ·: ! i' 1 • 

from or brings into Mauritius any property which is, or in whole or in part directly or 

indirectly represents, the proceeds bf any crime, where he suspects or has reasonable 

grouryds for suspecting that the property is derived or realized, in whole or in part, directly 
I • ' I I 

or indirectly from any ~-,.i;,.,e, shall commit an ottence." 
I : ) , , ,' 1 '. ' '• : ,/ : / 1 . ,. i, ~ ';_ •, ; ! ' : ':•~ , :~;l ! ' .. ' 1 t • : • i i : l i ., / :1 

Sectibrt6 : : 
,'J ·,. 

',,,,I ', :·,. 

··~ : 
lOIPage 

!, ~I 

I ff:. 



• 

"(1) A person may be convicted of )~oney laundering offence notwithstanding the 
!1!1 

absence of a conviction in respect df a crime which generated the proceeds alleged to 

h b I d ,.,.J ll· . ave een. aun £;Jreu .. _ -·---·-- ·--,- ,,, · --·- _ _ ·-- . -----· -·---·--······ . 
'!: :ji·.; 

(2) At)¥ pi,~o(J ~8)(, f upoo .sing/~ iif rir fio,;t '" upon se~af?(e intormetion, /,e r= 
with ~nd qq.nvtp~~qto( qq(h the,~?n11~:1aundenng oftence and otlhe otience W~tch .. '_i r' 

qenereied f~e-f)[OCefJdS ~f legecf tp,im~;v:e beenl aundered , . . : . . ; .· . • , , ; . . , . 
(3).ln any proceedings against a,pJrl~n for an ottence under this Pert; it shall be suffici~rit .. , 

to aver ;n the inforin;tion that tA~ b)$~erty is, in whole or in part, directly or fndirectly th~ 

p,roceeds of a crime, witho,ut sp~dt)!g any particular crime, and ,the Court, having re~ard · 
to all the evidence, may reasonaf:if:, infer that the proceeds were, in whole or in part, 

I • jj/ 
directly or indirectly, the proceeds of a crime." 

: i'!J, 

Section 8 . : r: 
i 

"(1)Any person who - . · ; :t 
·;; 

. i·:: 
(a)Commits an offence under tfJis fart; or 

(b)Disposes or otherwise deals w~th property subject to a fotfeiture order under 

subsection(2) . ' 
'!l 

shall on conviction; be liable to a finy. not exceedinq 2 million rupees and to 
' 11 'I ' 

P,enpl servitud~ for a .. term not exce~ding 10 years. 
. ' ·,, 

(2)Any ~roperty belonging to or in.thtposse$sion or under the control of any person who 

is convicted of enottence under thiSi;Part shall be deemed, unless the contraryis proved, 

to be derived from a crime and the C9urt may, in addition to any penalty imposed, order . ( ,· 
that the property be forfeited." · J 

,. 
(3)$ections 150, 151 end Part X of rhe Criminal Procedure Act and the Probation of 

Offenders Act shall not apply to a conviction under this Part. 

i 
Therefore, in order to establish its case under section 3(1 )(b) of the FIAMLA the 

prosecution must prove the followlngelernents: 

( 1) possession of property; 
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!' 
(2) in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, represents the: proceeds of a crime; 

. ' \: ,· 
(3) he has reasonable grounds to suspect that the property is derived, in whole or in part 

.· ,; . !i ' 
·--·-·-······· .. · ····--~ ... -------····--·.--.-----~~---·· -···· ..... h ,,\.. . ·- .. ,... . 

directly~'. i~dir~ctly from 'a crim!e 'J; ' ' ' ' . . . 
It rs clear that 1t must be shown thatthe property possessed, concealed, disquised, or 

transferred represented the prdceJ~~. of any crime and proof of a specific offence is not 
' . : : . ' '; .. :!: ; '1 , di! i : . . . " : r. ; I i .' . " 

required in order to establish g:uilt!.\i[:t.J_rtflermore Section 6(3) requires the prosecution to · 

adduce sufficient evidence fro·rf,·wh11[6h the cburt may reasonably infer that the proceeds : · 
' !j,! ' 

were, in whole or in part, directly or: fndirectly, derived from a crime. In other words, there 

must be a connection between th~ iicrime a~d the proceeds. In the case of The DPP v 
. , 1, 1 ,r· ' I ' • 1 ' , , 

i, 
A.A.Bholah [2010] PRV 59 at pa·ragtaph' 33 the Board referred to section 17(1) of 

' . 

ECAMLA which is now section 3(1) of the FIAMLA held as follows: 

"The Board has therefore concluded that proof of a specific offence was not required in 

order to esieblish guilt under sectiori:17(1) of ECAMLA. It is sufficient for the purposes of 
' ,l,1 

that subsection that it be shown tly~t the property possessed, concealed, disguised, or 
. . , . . ' .{:i , . . . 

transferred etc represented the pr9,_deeds of any crime - in other 'words any criminal 

ectivity : end thet-lt is not required df the prosecution to establish that it was the result of 
I i!· ;, 

a particular crime or crimes." . . :it:: r; ' : t J : 
23. COUNT 1 Possession of a car bearing registration number 746ZT02 which in 

. . . ; i:Ji: . 

whole directly represented the,Proceeds of crime .. 
' ' ii . 

I 
' ::· 

(1) Possesslon of property · ., ,,i 
. /· ' 

It is undisputed that the: accused Wi:3$ found in. possession of a car makeHonda Civic . In 
· 'I • , 1 I, ' 

fact, accused has readily .accepted ln his affidavit (Doc AL-paragraph 31 Refers) that he 

is the. owner of a Honda Civic . The element of possession of property is satisfied under 

count 1 . '1 j 
' I 

·./rl 
I 

(2) Whether the properly in who/~ pr in part directly represents the proceed of a crime? 
' , u·· i . 

This leads us to the predicate offence that is a crime which is committed in furtherance of 

the larger crime. However it is important to note that in the case of Bholah [Supra] the 
I 
f 
' . t 12 I P a g e 
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Board held that the proof of a particular predicate crime is not necessary but it must be ~. . ,. 
shown th-ar tne:-prop~tty·-poi:fsessed~represlfriTecr the pro~ceeas· ·of any- crYme. Thus· it 'is 

1 I I ' if' , 
importantto show ~h~t th,e property.was obtained through an. unlawful c~nduct and the 

proceeds are linked to a :criminal qbtivity. This principle was confirmed in Audit v The . , . j1 I , ' . . . ' 
State [2016] SCJ 282 where the ,'~o:urt held as follows : "In OPP v Bhola~ the Judicial . 

Comm itt~e. he Id that • proof of a p;utN~:ar predicatr crime is n,ot an essential • el~.me~t" of .r1e .. 

otfr1nc,e f ,f71on~Y; /a/md~_rinf '.' It is th,e(fJo_re suffiicient for the purpo~e~ of sTc::tion 3(_~) :of FIAMlft: 
that it w.as shown that the appellant w;;i~ in possession of property, which is, _in whole or in par:( 
di;~c~iy dr in~ire~tl; r~~r~s~nt 

1

the pro~~;ds of. a~y ~~ime: that :s· an/c~imin~i ~c~i~it)·· ' · : ' ·i 
' ,i1! , 

:; If . 
I ' L I I ' I :,'·f, j , ' ' I t .i ·, • I ' 

As per the evidence on record wit.tjf~S no.22, Mr Joomuck, testified to the; fact that in 

2008 he sold a Honda Civic for the ium of Rs300,000 to the accused and he also stated 

that he accepted the payment as hedid not find anything suspicious. It is clear that there 

is no evidence which links the Rs300,000 to any criminal activity or that it represented the 
' ··1,. 

proceeds of an illegal trading and that the car represents the proceeds of a crime. In view 
. :• ' 

of the prosecution evidence on record, the Court finds that the prosecution has failed to 
. ·1 ' ' 

prove that the car was derived in wHi:>le or in part, directly from proceeds of crime. Th~~. 
· . · ,I ,;'/· . , . , , . 

the prosecution did not prove the s;e~ond element of the offence. · 
. 

'.; ~ • • "· . , • I ' 
': ·( 

I 

(3) Reesoneb!e g(()unds to susJ;ct that the property is derived, in whole qr in part 

directly or indirectly from a cr(rne . 
. . r . 

"fh.e me~s ~ea for money launderi~~ !pttences is _knowledge or.suspicion . The Court finds 

it apt to quote ah .extract of the Judgfment of Man raj & Ors v ICAC [2003] SCJ 75 which . 

deals with the mental element of 're~sonable grounds to suspect', as follows: 
' If.· , 

" ... ,First, the suspicion should be reesonebie: King v Gardner: (1979) 7,1: Cr.App. R. 13; Prince 
' ' 

f.1~81] Crim .. L H- .638. Second reason_9bility snouta-be: gauged_ not from tnepersonel point of 
view ....... ,. It snouki be , appreciqteqi' from the objective standard, the point of. view of a • ' ' ' ' ' • ·. f'· ' I • • ' • 

dispassionate bystander: lnlan,d. Rev~riue Commissioners. v Rossminster Ltd [1980] A. C. 952. I ! . . : i :i . i r!· ·., :· .. I i ·1 I" I •.• i • : 

Finally, and importantly, .t~f: suspicion Should be based on facts.: King v Gardner (supra); Prince 
' ,, . J, ... \ .·j:" ,' . l: ,·, ' . ' '' 

(supra); Ware v Matthew February 11, 1;981, 1978 W No'. 1780 (Lexis). The facts relied on should 
. . . ... : . : :: , : :''j.:·. ·.. I : ' . . , , ·. ..'· . . 

be such as are consistent with the impl;cati6n of the suspect in the ctime: Pedro v Diss [1981] 2 
, , : i ' ,• r ; '."ji°'· 

Al/ER 59, D.C.; [1981] Crim. LR. '236.';:' 
'" 
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• 
i 

The Court must consider all the factd and circumstances of the case in order to determine 
whether it can be inferred that the accused had reasonable grounds to suspect that the 

proceeds were· proce:eqsn::>frcrirne:ni~ntoine\d:t-MAJ '/J,N: ~he :State·[ 2009]:~S:Cd; 328,. After 

considering all the eviden ce on ~~iil~; the Court is .of the view that there is ~,O need fo.r 

the Comt to emb.ark "' ~~e ':~·s~~: ~ll rtaso~~b:le gr~und~ to su~pe~t as' the. p:rose:cut(~; : 
has failed to establish the1·conhecfio·~Jbetweer the possession of the car and the proceeds 

' ',, I ' •\ ' I' f I ! Ji i ' ' 
of crime; in whole or iri part ' :· .. :; I. ' ' I .! • 11.. ,· I, 

\· · i" I :p!I i · i! .··1 
• : i I I ~ !:··:: . i ·; : 

; . i ; ; ' . I I ; r ~ ;t.. I i I .: ' ' ; r • • ; • ; 

In light .of the above the evideni ·~: of the prosecution falls short of 'satisfying the 
require~ents of section ~(3) of F11Aa1LA and ~he Court therefore finds that the ~1rosecutio~· 

, I j J I !!'! • I ' •, ' t , 

has failed to prove its case against;:the accused. The Court accordingly dismiss.Count 1 ., 
of the Information against the accused. 

I, . ,, 
Ii 
I 

23~COUNT 3:0n 26/10110 pos$essed a sum of Rs20,000 in his Saving Account 
I, 

192597256; I, 

COUNT.5:0n 08/07110 posses~ed a -sum of Rs 20,000 ln his. .Savi(Jg Account 
I ' ' ' • 

, 192597256;, . >1 I 
. ., ' . 

COUNT. 6:0n 23/07/10 posse1s:ed a sum ot Rs10,000 in his Saving Account 
192597256;. 

COUNT 8:0n 06/08110 possessed a sum of Rs10,000 in his Saving Account 

192597256; 
COUNT 10: On 01/09/10 possessed a sum of Rs10,000 in his Saving Account \ ' 

.192,597256; 'I 1: , 
'::I I 

COUNT 11: On 16109/10 poss~ssed a sum of Rs14,000 in hi~ Saving Account 
' ,, ' 

192597,256; 

COUNT 15: On 26110/10 possessed a sum of Rs 10,000 in his Saving Account 

1.92597256; . 1 i , : I'· · 

COUNT, 17: On 10/11110 possissed a sum of Rs10,000 in his Saving Account 
1925972~6;, '' : ' y '!' : ,, : :, 

CCJ(1iNT 19': On 30/11/10 possessed a sum of Rs10,000 in his Saving Account 
' i 

192597256; · r, 
! I 
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Count 21: On 23/12/10 possessed a sum of Rs20,000 in his Saving Account 
!' 

192597256. 

i . 

;, : 

crime? · ,} ;·,, · i ~ ! : . 

This leads us to the predicate offenc~\hat is a crime which is committed in furtherance of 
. ' ' 

the larger crime. At this point it is important to note that in the case of Bholah [Supra] the 

Board _held that the proof of a particular predicate crime· is not necessary but it must be 
, I . 

shown. that.the property possessed' represented the proceeds of any crime. Thus it is 

important to show that the property:was obtained through an unlawful conduct and the 
•i ·;, 

proceeds is linked to a criminal act,vit/ This principle was confirmed in Audit v The State 
··!: ·.: .. 

[2016] SCJ. 282 where the. Court tief~. as follows : "In OPP v Bholah (Supra) the Judicial 
. • ., 'I 

Committee held that "Proof of a partfcu1Jr. predicate crime is -not an essential "element" of the ., ,· : l . . 

offence of money laundering." It is therefore sufficient for the purposes of section 3(1) of FIAMLA 
-1 ' ; I • t • ~ i i : . I . ' 

that it was shown that the appellant was 'ln possession of property, which is, in whole or in part, 

directly or indirectly represent the pr~c·J~cis of any crime that is any criminal activity." 

As per the evidence on record Mis~ 'Solrnah Eckbarally and Mr Feroz Khan Rujoallee 

jointly hold a Saving Account bearing number 192597256 of the MCB and this is 
• f I I • ' ' 

. . ' 

substantiated 'by the. Bank Statements which have been produced (Doc AA Refers). 
:.: , / - '. , !t ,, ! • 

1

, I- •• ·; •. ' • : , , ,, 

However the prosecution did not adduce any evidence which link the money deposited in 
l ·, 1 ! ! . I, ·, I ': ' I • . , , , , , ... 

the Saving account of the accused under each Count to any criminal activity or that it 
I ' ',' ' I 

I - I ' 

represented the proceeds of an illegal trading. As per the evidence ofwitness no.1 during 
: ' •• • • • • I ! . . . .· t ' ': : . 1 ,· . :· • I . : t. : I • I ' ' !( ~ \ ' ' . 

his investigation he noticed that accused used his credit card to pay Mega Uploads and 
• ' • • i I . ' ' I ·, I .; : : ' i' .. ; i I ' ' 1: I~ : ' ; . I . 

Tectonics and these websites are mainly used for downloading movies at cheaper rates. 
' t I ·, 1 ; . ."1:·1 ' . 'I! . '!' . l·· ;. I • 

! .' 
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The Court is of the opinion that it can't rely on this evidence as it is too vague. In view of 

the prosecution evidence on record, the Court finds that the prosecution has failed to 

prove.that.the __ deooslts.m.tbe.Savlna.Account of.the __ accused. under.each. Gountwas ·- ... 
. I· .· . 

derived in whole or in part, directly f~FT proceeds or any crime. Thus.jhe prosecution did 

not prove the second .elernent of the'i'.offen,ce! in respect of each Count. . , .· · . · i 
• ,· , 1 ,. 'r· , , I · :,:·r,jij !! ; . ·. I I' :, · ,. ! , ' ' , · ' • : i :,: I • :, , • 

I • ! , r , ' • • ·_, ,, I · ). , ' : j •' 1·' ' .•.·. 

, : (3; Reas~~~Q'.~ g~u~d~ 1~:r1~ie~t+ith~ f,n:Pe~ is derived, in 'fh~le ~r i~ Perl ' ;j;:: 
1 directly or indirectty troms cnme i · 1, . ,.,, .: 

' ; ,1 , j • I• • •• •,· !.• · , j ' ,1 ,J, 

"" ~ens '" for money launder~~~,i\?~~~c~s i~ ,kn~~ledg~;or suspicio~ : .The ~ourt'fi:ds ·r: 
1t apt to. quote an extract of the J~

1
dg1ment 9f!_Manra1 ~ Ors_v ICAC [2903] SCJ 75 which . . ' 

. ,~ 
·;1 
.i~ . : 

deals with the mental element' of 'reasonable grounds to suspect' as follows:' . . : ; 

" ... First, the suspicion should be reasonable: King v Gardner (1979) 71 Cr.App. R. 13; Prince 

[1981] Crim. L. R. 638. Second reasonability should be gauged not from the personal point of 

view It should be appreciated, from the objectlve standard, the point of view. of a 
dispessionete bystander: Inland .Reve._nue Commissioners v Rossminsier Ltd [1980] A. C. 952. 

Finally, and importantly, the suspicion should be based on facts: King v Gardner (supra); Prince 
, '. I : : l : .-; ' ; , • ' ' ' ' 1 . ~ J ' , • • 

(supra); Ware v Matthew February 11, 1981; 1978 :w. No. 1780 (Lexis). The facts relied on should 
1 , ; I; ' ~ , . , ' · 

be such as are consistent with the 'implication of the suspect in the crime: Pedro v Diss [1981] 2 

All ER 59, D.C.; [1981] Crim. L.R. 236.''. 

The Court must consider all th'e facts and circumstances of the casein order to determine 

whether it can be inferred that the' accused had reasonable grounds to suspect that the 

proceeds were proceeds of crime: Antoine J:M.D J.V The ·state f 2009] SCJ 328. After 
. • I • • • ' " 

considerinq 'all the evidence on record the Court' is 6'f the view :that there is no need for 
,,,I, ' . 

: . . i I. ' I ·.,!t ' . i· . , ,., I '. t • 

the Court to embark oh the issue of.reasonable grounds to suspect as· the prosecution 
t '.' 

has failed to establish the connection'betweerr the possession of the deposits ·under each 
, · • i ' , ' ,. : ·' I . . . 

Count in the Saving Accounts of the· accused and' the proceeds of crime in whole or in 
: ' ' ' . i 

part. ,. ·1. 

I~ light of the ,abo~e the evidence of the prosecution falls short, of satisfying the 
'• 

requirements of section 6(3) of FIAty1LA in respect of each Count and tbe Court therefore 
. . ! l • • 

finds that the prosecution has faile~; to prove its case against the accused. The Court 
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accordingly dismiss Count 3, Count5, Count' 6, Count 8, Count 10, Count 11, Count 15 , 

Count 17, Count 19 and Count 21 of the Information against the accused. 

-··-···---------- • •-·•- -·-·-----·---- "--·~·-- •"~"-~/" __ ._._ • • -4•),n . ..,, , •• .,·. •· , 

. . .· i1' . I 
24. COUNT 4 :.On .06107110 poss,~ssed a sum of. Rs30;000 in. Saving: Account 

·" 
, · 193851}199 of1Minor daughter $';bi :f?ae;e~ha Rujballee; · : 

• 1 , • • : . • • ·1:~ 1 ·, r • . . 

, COUNt.7:0n 30/07110 possessed a jsuin of Rs. 10,000 in Saving Account 
: ' ' ' ~1l! ! . . ' 

193851199'of Minor daughter ~ibi Reeeshe Rujballee; 
COUN·T ,9: On 01/0.9/10 possissed ~ sum of :Rs10,000 in 

: ':~ • T 

1:93851199 of.Minor daughti3,: Btbi Reeeshe. R,'ujba(lee; · 
. ' ·1·, i 

.~~UNT 1~: On 121~0110 P,t?sf.1essed ;a su11,1 of Rs·1~;~oq. ir~. $aving: Account., 
193851199 of Minor daughter Bibi Raeesha Rujballee; 

;i) ; • ,. ,. 
''! 

·,., '· 
. ,I . 

· .. !.' .I · . ·~ . 
I~ ) . 

COUNT 14: On 26/10/10 poseessed a sum of Rs10,000 in Saving Account 
193851199 of Minor daughter Bibi Raeesha Rujballee; 
COUNT 18: On 30111/10 ,poss,:essed ;a sum of Rs10,000 in Sav/ng Account 
193851199 of Minor daughter Bibi Reeesh« Rujballee; . 
COUNT 22:. On 23/12/10 p,o,ssessed a sum of Rs20,000 in Saving Account 

1~3851199 'I ; I , , 

.!'. , . • 1, '! 

, : ( 1) Possession of property . ( 1,: 

It is. undisputed that the accused was in possession of the Mauritian rupees that he 

deposited .iri the .Savinqs Account :b1:aring 
I 
number 19385119,9 of ~is ~inor daughter 

Raeesha Rujballee under each Count and' this is substantiated by the ATM Deposits 
>• ' ' •: ;; •' : I 

Envelope (Doc AE Refers), In fact theaccused has readily accepted in-his affidavit (Doc 
' • ' ' I j ! ; ' ' 

,,• i·, 

AL qt paraqraph ~9 Refers) that, he 'opened a Saving. account in the name of his minor 
' . ., .:· . . 

daughter Bibi Raeesha · Rujballee al)d: the money in; that account was cash in hand 

accumulated.by- him. Thus the elemerrtrofpossession of property is satisfied under each 
Count. .. ! · ;-:,,. , ... 1 

l ' j, .. 

·i . ; !'. ·:·,. ' j l • • ., ,: J ! : ~ ~ ;· . ' ': ' ; j . . i ! '. 1)!1 . 

, I, I, 
.' I !. ' ;',; ' ~: '·i i ;. l 

., 
. ··· ' :·i ... , , ! 

I ' 

I. ' ' 
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(2) Whether the property in whole or in part directly represents the proceed of a 

crime? 

Thisleads us.to tbe.preotcate.ortence that isacrirne . wruch is committed in furtherance of ' . . . .·,:;' i; ' .. : . ' . ' 
the larger crime. At this stage it is 'important to note that in the case of Bholah [Supra] 

the Board held that'the p'~6of at;~: p;'!rticular predicate c~i/ne is not nec~ssary but it must 
',; . ;: i) :l .. '. . ! .• • •• 

be shown that the property possessed represented the proceeds of any crime. J'hu.~ it rs 
;1 ·:. . .: . 

not important to prove the predicateoffence but we must show that the proceeds'. is tinked . /> 
' ! . . : ·it/. 

to a criminal activity or has been obtiai~ed through an unlawful activity. This principle' was · . j 
confirmed in Audit v The·state, [2016J° SCJ 282 where the Court held as follows] "In OPP · 

' ' ' 

i'J 
• .l 

v Bholah (Supra) the Judicial Comrntttee held that "Proof of a particular predicate crime is not an 
. I 'I • . ' f. ! r I . I . . : I : r • If 

. essential "element" of the ottenceot mqney teunderinq." It is therefore sufficient for the-purposes 

of section 3(1) of FIAMLA that it was shown that the appellant was in possession of property, 

which is, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly represent the proceeds of any crime that is any 

criminal activity." 
. " ' ' 

As per the evidence on record Mr Feroz Khan Rujballee has opened a Saving Account 
: ' . ! ! ;: :;,-· . ! ' ' ' I I 

bearing number 193851199 at the :MCB in the name of his minor daughter and this is 
, . ' : ; . i • .·: 11 . ' 1 I: ! ,: : ; ; ·i 

substantiated by the Affidavit of the accused (Doc AL Refers ) and the· ATM Deposits 
' ' ·r, , r • I I ! 

Envelope which have beeri produced (Doc AE Refers). However the prosecution did not 
•. • : , .• ; 1·r1

1 
-· • __ • • : : 1\ . · · . ; 

adduce any evidence 'which link the money deposited iii the Saving account under each 
I ! . , '1· ' , 'I : ,. .: • • I ' .. , , ' ' 

Count to any criminal activity or that it represented the proceeds of an illegal trading. In 
I j , j ·.1 : ; • ! , 

view of the prosecution evidence on· record, the Court finds that the prosecution has failed 
• ' ; ' • ' I • ' ' I ~ ' l : ' : • : ' ' ' ' ' : ' . 
to prove that the money deposited by the accused in the Saving Account of the Minor 

·I 

Raeesha Rujballee under each Count was derived in whole or in part, directly from 
! ' ' ' , I • • - ) '. , • • : • ' ] • ' ~ • • ; • • 

proceeds of any crime. Thus, the prosecution did not prove the second element of the 
• ' • I j • 

offence in respect of each Count. . ! 

(3) Reasonable grounds to suspect that the property is derived, in whole or in part 

directly or indirectly from a crime 
·, 

The mens rea for money laundering offences _is knowledge or suspicion : The Court finds 

it apt to quote an extract ofthe Judgment of Manraj & Ors v ICAC [2003] SCJ 75 which 

deals with the mental element of 'reasonable grounqs to suspect' as follows: 

18 I Page 
; I 



• 

" ... First, the suspicion should be reasonable: King v Gardner (1979) 71 Cr.App. R.. 13; Prince 

[1981] Crim. L. R. 638. Second reasonability should be gauged not from the personal point of 

view......... It should be appreciated from the objective stand ero, the point of view of a 
• • • • •- - " ·~• "' • •~ ..... , _ _. •• ,,.. •• ' • • .--•·•·''• -----· --~- ~ •·• •'- -- ... - ••~ •""•• .& • ••• • • • •' "• -J • •• • , , •'- r.,~• .. "· L ._,-, , • " '"• -• • 

dispassionate bystander: Inland Revenue Commissioners v Rossminster Ltd [1980] A. C. 952. 

Fi~al/y, and importantly, the suspicioril·$hOi.Jld be besed'on facts: King V Gardner (supra);' Prince . 
• i !jr ; ' :1 , ,;,• .. t 

(supra); Ware v Matthew February 11, '.'1981; 1978 W No. 1780 (Lexis). The factsl relied on Should ; : j'l'i 
J 'I . •'·,,; I 

; • • ''' , I ' ' ' ; ! ti : i '. ' ' ,, • I ~ , • : J, j ' ' :!j . '.. , ~_:; 
be such as are consistent with the implication of the suspect in the crime: Pedro v Diss [19.81] 2 , .,. 

,: . ' • . :f. . 'I \!,j 
All ER 59, O.C.; {1981] Crim. L.R. 236( . : F .. ; 

:. r \~! : '! • I I J: : 
! I :i:C : :; 

The Court must consider all th~ ,fa!c~~ ah.d citci.Hi1stahdes:of the case1in; order to!1determine 
' . I . . I . I 'I ,· ;,, :, '. ' . . . . . . ·, . i ,ii ' 

whether· it can be inferred that the 'accused: had reasonable grounds to suspect that the 
, ,! 

' . !i 
proceeds were proceeds of crime, Antoine J.M.D J.V The State [ 2009] SCJ: 328.1lAfter 

. ,, ~ 
considering all the evidence on record the Court is of the view that there is rio ne~d for 

. + 
the Court to embark on the issue of reasonable grounds to suspect as the prosecution 
has failed to establish the connection between the possession of the deposits under'each 

Count in the Saving Accounts of th~ MiMor Raeesha Rujballee and the proceeds of ·~rime 
I 'I 'i. ,!I 1' 

in whole or in part. :: /j1 

if 

In light of the .above the evidence of the prosecution falls short of satlsfyini the 
I ' I . :,; 

requirements of section 6(3) of FIAMLA in respect of each Count and the Court therefore 
I I ' ' 'j ' • 1 • ' ' I ( ' ~ ,• 

finds that _the prosecution has failed to prove its case against the accused. :rhe Court 
• . . ' '::; i . . 

accordingly dismiss Count 4, CountZ, ·Count 9, Count 13, Count 14,Count 18;and Count 

22 of the Information against the accused. 

i 
i 
' !, I 

·i "· ,. 
: •. .11 

··:i 
I; I, ; ,[ :;· t z l,.'1 i I : 

25. COUNT 12 :On, 27/09/10 possessea a .sum of Rs7,975 in his :Saving Account 
I , [. 

03610100112482 ;, , 1 

COUNT.16 :,On 27/10/10 possessed a sum of Rs,.4,925 in his Saving·Account 
03610100112482; 
COUNT 20:)0n 01/12110 po_sses·s~d a slim of Rs5,375 in his Saving Account 

'. 
03610100112482; 
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COUNT 23: On 24/12/10 possessed a sum of Rs4,950 in his Saving Account 

03610100112482. 

. .. -·· --·- --· . -·- .. ···---------· .. ---·- --- - ·-- - -----'-· .. -- ...... - ·------ -- . ·-·- .. ··- .... ··--- . 
(1) Possession of properly, i 1\ 1 ; , :; i: 

. • ::· .;· , ~ 'I I · 

It is: unc;Hsplited .. , t~:at the acCU§ed ·yvas in possession of the Mauritian rupees th~t he ! .. 

deposited' in his Savings Accot:J:wt: ~~~ring number 0~610100112482 .at SBM ;un?erljeach . ;: ::· , 

Count-arid this ,"s··s:6bstantiated·Jby:the' Letter and Bank Statements (Doc AH :Refer;~). In :Ji· 
i ' ; I ;,! ! . .I I ,· . '.· • ~: h1: .. 

tactthe'accused h'as··r.eadily accep,t'e'd:in- his affidavit 1(Doc 'AL at p~fag'raptt 281R~~ers) · ,··i,::, 
'· ·11 ,, .. ' ' 

that .he opehed !a Saving account in his name at SBM and the money in that account was 
. ! I ·n 

cash inhand accumulated by hirn .Thus the ,~lement of possession of propertyis satisfied 
I ' 

'jii;' . i: under each Count. 

(2) Whether the property in whole or in part directly represents the proceed of a 

- crime? , . i' • 'i 
I 

This. leads us to: the predicate offence that is a crime which is committed in furtherance of 
. ' .,. 

the larger crime. At this stage it is important to note that in the case of Bholah [Supra] 
the Board held that the proof of a particular predicate crime is not necessary but it must 

be shown that the. property possessed represented the proceeds of any crime. Thus it is 
I "' '.;' 

not important to prove the predicate offence but we must show that the. proceeds is linked , 
, . I ',: 

to a criminal activity or. has been obtf ined through an unlawful activity. This princi;ple was 

confirmed in Audit v The State [2q1
1
6) SCJ 282 wh~re the Court held as follows: "In OPP 

I ,h· 

v Bholah (Supra) the Judicial Committee held that "Proof of a particular predicate crime is not an 
I. ';:; . . ( 

essential "element" ~f the oitence of ~1ney leunderlnq. ". :It is the~efore suffi,cient for the pur~oses 
of section 3(1) of FIAMLA that it was shown that the appellant was in possession of property, 

, , . -· . I , . 

which is, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly represent the proceeds of any crime that is any 

criminal activity." 
,. 
!., 
i 

As per the evidence on record Mr Fferoz Khan Rujballee has opened a Saving Account 
", •! l' ' . ; . I 

bearing number 036101o'0112482 at the SBM in his and this is substantiated by the 
! : i, '.~ I , ; ~ , I • ! 1 

Affidavit of the accused (Doc AL at paragraph 28 Refers)' and the Bank Statements which 
I · , . . .. ' 1·1 Ii ' 

have been produced (Doc AH Refers). However the prosecution did 'not 'adduce any 
•···. 1' 

I ,., . I·, I ':· I I - 

evidence which link the money deposited in the Saving account under each Count to any 
' ;' ; 

! ,. 
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• 
• 

r 

criminal activity or that it represented the proceeds of an illegal trading. In view of the 
I \ 

prosecution evidence on record. the Court finds that the prosecution has failed to prove 

that the _money..deposite.c:Lby-1haacbus.e.ci ln.hia.Saving.Account unoer.each.count.was .. 

de,rived in whole or in part.' direc/,1Y, \f m proceeds of any crime. Thus, the pros7cution did ' 

not prove the second element opH~!offence,in respect of each Count. 
, ,· .,-,. I' . 

· I . . , .: I · ' ! ' · ~;_,l;j:'iii: f!I :: i ;1 · I, · :;, I : i •· 

. ' ., ' t\::!J ' ' ,. ' 
' ·I ' ' ' ,,IH:",j' 111 . ' I ·I, '' I I' ,i ' ' 

~I. • • 1 l I ' I ! ' I ! 
' 

1
~1 j' /, 11!, ; ' j t I : 

'; I r I ' ' \ I ~: jl11t; IJI' ,, ' ' ', I ' ! ' ' " ' ' ':);!j1;Ji!11t ! '. • , ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ! : . ' 

, (3) R_easonab~e?rounds::~,11s;·~ct that the f(operty is derived, in wnot« or if part 
directlyor indirectty fmmk~.Pnme , 1 

• 1 ~ '. • , J I 1!. : + I I 

The mens rea for money launde:~~n'~i,bttence·s is knowledge or suspicion . Thel Court finds· 
t ' I I 

it apt to quote an extract of the Jµdgp1ent of Man raj·& Ors v ICAC [2003] SCJ 75 which 
, IJ . 

deals with the mental element of 'reasonable grounds to suspect' as follows: 

". .. First, the suspicion should be :r~.a~qnable: King v Gardner (1979) 71 Cr.App. R. 13; Prince 
'. 

[1981] Crim. L. R. 638. Second .re~#9h,ability shouki be gauged not from the personel-point of 
• • I ! ' , 

' • j 

view It should .. be appreciaW¢1 from the objective standard, the. point of view of a 
• ' ' . 'j .1 · 11: ' ' ' I . ' ' ' ·i ' ; ' ' I ' ,, ' 

dispassionate bystander: lnlena R.e..Jr$r,u,e Commissioners v Rossminster l,.td [1980] A. C. 952. 

Finally, and importantly, ·'the S~
1

spidiJH 1hould be based on tects: King v Gardner (supra); Prince 
' •• , . ,.: '. ' .:, '. :,,.: .. ; ' • • ' \ II I ·; : : • •:: • 

(supra); Ware v Matthew February: 1;1,,; 1981, 1978 W No. 1780 (Lexis). The facts relied on should 
. j::· 

be such as are consistent with the :(rfplication of the suspect in the crime: Pedro v Diss [1981 J 2 
All ER 59, D.C.; [1981] Crim. L.R. :2~~-" 

: ·i 
i•. :I, 
, I • . 

The Court must consider all the facts and circumstances of the case in order to determine 
whether it can be inferred that the accused had reasonable grounds to suspect that the 

proceeds were proceeds ot'trimJ; ·A~toine J.M·.o J.V The State 1
[ 2009] SCJ 328. After · 

considering all the evidence
1 
dri'r~cord the 'c6~rf isi of the view that th.ere is no 'need for 

. • ' . 1' .. ' I ,I ii .. · . ' I , ' I i 

the Court to embark' oh the issue' of reasonable grounds' to suspect as the prosecution 

has failed to establish the connection' betweeh1 the possession 'ot the deposits under each 

Count in the Savihg Accounts of· the: 'accus~d and the1 proceeds of crime iri whole or in 
part. 
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In light of the above the evidence of the prosecution falls short of satisfying the 
requirements of section 6(3) of FIAMLA in respect of each Count and the Court therefore · 

fir:,q~Jh_~tJb~LPfO_$_e_cu~ion .. has J~N~,~t.to~"p.ra,'{~ j~s c,ase,.J?9?i(1st the c3cc:;qs~d,. The Court · 
accordingly dismiss Count 12,' · io~ht 1· 6; Count 20 and Count 23 Qf the Information 

11· : ,, ,! 

against the: accused. : · Ji:, ;I' 'n·i fi! ' 
,t it! ; ii . 

. ;= ,I': ' ; : ::• ;11:: :' Iii I : I ' '· ,,;; ! ' ' 
1:· t • I ·.:\ 

COUNr2:·MtJ'riey Lauhdering J1hitih!a'ch: of'sections 3(1 )(a), .6 and 8 of the Financial '. 

Intelligence an'd Anti Money LJ~ni6ering Act 2002 ' 
lj t, .: 

26. Section 3(1 )(a) FIAMLA read$::a.s
1

1 follows: 
" ill ... ' 

'Any person Vllh<? - (a) enga9.es, in a,tra1,saction (~qt involves property wfJich is; or in .w,h9le 

or in part directly or indirectly repre~tht~,: the proceeds of any crime;' 
l.n ! 

(b) (. ... ) l1: ' 
•1,. 
'I 

' ... where he suspects or has reasori~bir grounds for suspecting that the property is derived 

or realized, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly from any crime, shall commit an 
. ' . f;! . : : ' I I 

offence.' 

' iii ., . 
The prosecution niust prove the f,piloWing elements:' 

(1) engages· in 'a transaction tha~l)nvolves property; 
(2) which is, or in whole or in paJ!\:iirectly or indirectly represents, the proceeds of crime; 

(3) where he suspects or has r~:a~onable grounds for suspecting that the property is 

derived, ~eali
1

sed;·in whole orl~- part; directly 01
r 'indiretfly from a'ny crim~ 

,I. -·, ' ' i I' 1-'·' '!!: , i . ' , •i · J. ' . . ; . . ; . '. ~ ·' !' . l '. :· .• . : ' ' ' 
I 

. I : ,. . . , ,1 .. ,. . 
(1) Engages in 'a transaction, it.hat involves property 

ii' 
It is undisputed that the accusedhas taken an insurance policy for the sum insured of 

. 11j 

Rs2.'1 million (Doc AF Refers') arid the accused has readily accepted in his affidavit (Doc 

AL at paragraph 26 Refers) thaJ!he took an insurance policy and he transferred Rs2.1 
t ' ' ;•i• . I ' 

million from his personal saving account at the MCB to BAI Co Ltd. Thus the first element 
' '' : . 

is satisfied. 
.1 
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.j; 

·, 
i 

•\ 

(2) Whether the transaction it, whole or in part directly represents, the proceeds of 
'! 

crime? 

As per.tbe.case __ ofBbQlahJS_yp_c~]JheJ3..oardJ:leJd.tb.at the pr.o_o.f of a_p.a_rticular predicate ... 

crime isnot necessarybut it mus~.be shown that theproperty possessed represented the 

proceeds of an~ crime. :Th as it ,is; ~
1

oi;it11portant to' prove the predicate offence b.~t we must . H !>; . . . . . . . , . :, 
show that the proceeds is linked)o. a criminal activity or has been obtained· through an 

![/ ' .: 
unlawful activity. This principlex zas cohfirmed in Audit v The State [2016] SCJ. 2a2:: 
where the Court held as follows··f'ln 6~P v Bholah (?upra) the Judicial Committee held that 

"Proof of a particular predicate crl'tj!e , is not an essential "element" of the offence of money 
. 1, 

laundering." It is therefore sufficient ~br the purposes of section 3(1) of FIAMLA that it was shown 
'• ' 'I ' 'ii 

that the appellant was in possessiofof property, which is, in whole or in part, directly or indirectly 
represent the proceeds of any crimE£ that is any criminal activity." 

·1: . . ' 1: 
In the case of AR Ferrell v The /Queen [2010] UKPC 20, the Board held that: . : • .. • . , .'. • • ,J, '. ,1, I : , • •, • • I 

"12. The only question is whether a 9.ury was entitled to infer that it was drugs money. In the 
~ I ; . 

opinion of the Board, the answer to fhat question, at any rate in the absence of a credible 
i ) r , ._ : ' _. ~ ! I ' ' • • ' . , · ' ·I ' , 

explanation to the contrary, isves. T~e·only'si.Jggestion made by or on behalf of the appellant 

was that the cash -ceme from work1n,'g as :a doorman and from smuggling tobacco into $pain. · . . ' 

There was however no support for th:e evidence that it came from tobacco smuggling, On the 

other hand, there is evidence that th~ appellant was ·a drug dealer, albeit at :a: later time than he 

was laun,dering the money. It was open to-the jury to reject his explanation and to conclude tbe: . .,, ,. '• ' . . . ',• ' 

there, was no reesoneb!e doubt tbettne money came from earlier dealing in drugs. II 
1 . . 

As per the evidence on record Mr Feroz Khan Ruiballee has transferred the sum of Rs 
1·1 ' 

2.1 million rupees to BAI Co Ltd.;1As per the evidence on record the prosecution did not 

establish that the-Rs2.1 million came from ·any criminal activity or that it represented the 

proceeds of an illegal trading. Thus there is no evidence that accused was laundering any 

money. 'As per his: affidavit the :accused ~xplaineti that the 2.1 million is mostly cash 

accumulated from the various - businesses mentioned in the affidavit. In view of the 
I ;: • .· • . • 

prosecution evidence on record, ~he Court finds that the prosecution has failec to prove 
1' • • 

that the Rs2.1 million which was transterred from his Saving Account to BAI Co Ltd was 
. _i. 
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derived in whole or in part, directly from proceeds of any crime. Thus, the prosecution did 

not prove the second element of the offence in respect of Count 2. 

·- -· -·-- -· -- - - - ' - .. - ----··--:. -: -· --- - ···---;-- -·· ~· --- _ ·- .- ----- ~ ··- ,. .,_,_ -· ·-. 

(3) Reasonable grounds t6 su~pect that the property is derived, in whoJe or in part 
I . I : I . 

directiy ()[ indirectly fro~ a drime l ' . . 
1 

JI ' 
' ' . , . ' , : . ; , ' ,;: .ii .::I , , , l ' , , .. i . . : , . , : ' ,: '., 
The mens rea for money laundering offences is knowledge or suspicion . The Court finds 

it apt to ~~ote ~n ~xt·~~ct.cif th~ J~~g~e:~t of Ma~~~j·&. Ors v ICAt [2003] scj t°s which 
: : t, . ; '.. ! : I • • t. I;: : I : ,\ l . ' : .. ? I ,: ; ' 'I : • . • ' ' i : I, 

dealy with the me,nral el~men~,°f l~a~;o·~~ble ~roun~s to suspect' a~ follo~s: : . ' 

" .. ;First, the suspicion shou~d be r,~son~ble: K~ng v Gardner (1979) 71 Cr.App. ~'. 13; Prince 

[1981] Crim. L. R 638. Second rea
1
s¢mability s,hpul~ be [!auged not trom the personal point of 

view ..... ,... It should be appreciated from the objective standard, the point of view of a 
. l 

dispassionate bystander: Inland Revenue Commissioners v Rossminster Ltd [1980] A. C. 952. 

Finally, and importantly, the suspicion should be based on facts: King v Gardner (supra); Prince 

(supra); Ware v Matthew February 11, 1981, 1978 W No. 1780 (Lexis). The facts relied on should 
. t ; • : 

be such as are consist~nt with the implication of the suspect in the crime: Pedro v Diss [1981] 2 

All ER 59, D.C.,,'[1981] Crim. L.R. 2$6." 

I ', ' • 

The Court must consider all the facts ~nd circumstances of the case in order to determine 
,, 

whether it can be inferred that the accused had reasonable grounds to suspect that the 
; •• I I ; • • • /,· • ' •• 

proceeds were proceeds of crime; Antoine J.M.D J.V The State,[ 2009] SCJ 328. After 
considerinq an· th~ ~videhce: on r$cord the 'cburt isl 6t the· view 'that there is no need for 

the Court to embark en the 'iseue of reasonable grounds to suspect' as the prosecution 

has failed to establishthe 'connectioh between the Rs2.1 million which was transferred 
.' , : 1 • :, ,, ; , : t ,, •• t 1 

from his Saving Accounts to BAI 'Co Ltd and the proceeds of crime in whole or in part. 
' ; , ' 

I• 

} • , I J 

In light of the above the evidence of the prosecution falls short cl satisfying the 
I, 

requirements ofsection 6,(3) of flAMLA and the Court therefore finds that the prosecution 
: . ! ' J • ' : 

has failed to prove its case aqainst the accused. The Court accordingly dismiss Count 2 
• , . I . 

of the Information against the accused. 

., . I /Zf/ __ . 
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27. Identification 
As per the evidence on record there was no identification exercise carried out at the level 

of the. enquiry.as. the owners.ct.the.vdeo.cluo knew.the .accused.:.[Irnnscript. dated .. 
17/02/2021 at page 104 Refers)-'.jTrue it is that identification was not made a' live issue 

' • ' I : ,'•i :• J • , 1 •1: '. 

but the fact remains that the mc;1in: witnesses that is the video club·owners did notstate in' 
, 11 r : 

clear terms that accusedis thei p~rsorfi to whom they g'aye the-cheques or the person to 
. : ·: l .·•!I , I, I ' . ' i' I' 

whom they: bought any copies, ofjfilr11s,16r DVD~ or VCDS. As per their version they were 
r ,1 I , 

dealing With one Feroz and in c·~·urt they clearly stated that they did not' sel"Feroz" in 
··ti, 

Court. This create doubts ~urroutjding the identification of the said Accused. : 
~ : 
'. !• 

27. Cheques Paid by Video Club Owriers 1 

• 
As per the version of witness no.t, the main enquiry officer, according to his observations 

'· 
all the cheques were issued by the owners .of the video club. However in Court witness 

no.13. stated that her husband rarii the video club. She was shown 16 cheques (Doc AG48 
·, 

TO AG 63 Refer) and she said dees not know the person whose name is on the cheque. , .. 
Witness. no.10 stated that she did not see Mr Feroze in Court. Witness no.11 was shown 

. ' .. ) . . ' . . ' 

several cheques (Doc AG 64 to :!AG 82) and he stated that he was purchasing original 

films only from Mr Naguib. He fu~he~ stated that he has never inserted the name on the 

cheque and he did. not see Mr F~roze in Court. Wit_ness no.14 wasshown the cheques 
. I; , 

(Doc AG300 to AG 301 Refer) add he stated that he has effected payment to Mr Naguib 
•• • (j• ' . . •r 

and he does not know Mr Rujbaljfe Feroz. He a_lso stated that he did not see Mr Feroze 

in Court. Witness no.f S .stated that he knewMr Naguib only and he did not know Mr 
I • ;J ' I 

Rujballee. He was shown one ch}que· (Doc AG Refer) and he stated that he did not pay d . : 
any cheque to Mr Ruiballee. Witn;ess. no.16 was shown 14 cheques and he said he does 

' , • • • r• ., . •.. • . }.; ,., 

not knowMr.Ruiballee. Witness no.17 was shown one cheque (Doc AG27:7 Refers) and 
' 

hE3 said Mr Rujballee is unknownto him. It is clear as per the evidence of the video club 
'· 

owners they did not insert the na.'.me.of FerozRujballee on.the cheques, they dealt with 
. 1 . • 

one Naguib and they: gave the cheques to Mr Nagu_ib. They were not able to: identify Mr 
i . . l , 

Feroz in Court. ' 
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' ' 

28. Enquiry and the Statement of witness ho. 7 (Doc AR Refers) 
In Shogun v The State [2005] SCJ 144 the Supreme Court held that an out of court 

statement ,.,had.~_.rigbtly J:reen __ ,di~~~rq.e..d. 9~")t __ Included .. ,~xt~n$ive hearsay __ . evidence . 
· . · · · · · : : · · ' · · ' ·' 1: : ;: ·l ' . ~ ' : • . - 

emanating frorri third parties wrl'c;, were not called as witnesses. However ohe of the 
! 1:: . · .. ' : I j; ,fi' ', j ':; : j ; ' :I ',/ ' ' 

accepted categories is where the l~gi'slator::create's statutory exceptions to the rule. 
' r _:· I_ ,.! 'i , • : '; i~ • , • ; ' : ii : I ' : . j;!;. ; l- .: . '. . ' I i • ! . ; : . . t . '· .i: ·. ! . \ .! , .- . ·' 

Section 188C(1 )l ofthe Courts Ac{:create one such statutory exception where a statement 
mad1! out of ic~Jrt 6ciin:be1 ircid8c16 without'the m

1

~1<iJr thereof 6~ing c~lled as a ~itneis'. 

The ·iss~~ of1ad~issibility Jf the ~l~tement on the ground that it amounts to hearsay does 

not therefore arise. However, the·\veight to be attached to such a document can still be 
' i ' 

challenged. As ,Per the evidence on record the vid_e9, club owners clearly stated .and 

maintained that the enquiry officerhas put pressure on them to give a particular version. 

in their statement. The prosecution put inconsistent statement to witness no.14 and he . 

maintained he never mentioned the name of Mr Feroze Rujuballee in his statement. 

V.Vitn~ss. no.i p ~ven stated that the ICAC Officer insisted. with him to give the version that . 
' •! ' ! . ·! • ' • ,. • ~ • ' 

this! .person ::Wc3~: corninq ,to i his video club in. uniform. After considering all the 
circumstances of the case.and the.version giv~n by the video club owners the Court was 

, I • :1 ' 

not persuaded to act on the version witness no.? gave to the ICAC and it casts.doubt on . 
' ' 

the straightforw_ardaccount given by witness no.7. Therefore the Cou~ is of the view that 

it cannot safely rely on the contents .of the st.~~ement of witness no_. 7. Furthermore these . 

elements affect the fairness of the enquiry ci,r,d this creates doubts in the case of the 
. ' '. ~ 

prosecution .. 

29. Conclusion i 
I : 

The. Court is of the view that the prosecution has failed to prove the elements of the 

offence beyond reasonable doubt under .each Count and the Court therefore dismisses 
the case ·against Accused 

[Delivered ·by Ag ·vfce· . r sident l~termediate Cburt (Civil i:>iv): 
N DAUHOO] 
[Deliveref:1 on, 21st April 2022] 

' 
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